
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
Y CABINET 

 
DYDD LLUN, 21 TACHWEDD 2022 

  
YN SYTH AR ÔL CYFARFOD PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISÏAU AC 

ADNODDAU'R CABINET  
 

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR – CANOLFAN DDINESIG CASTELL-NEDD PORT 
TALBOT 

 
 

 
RHAID GOSOD POB FFÔN SYMUDOL AR Y MODD DISTAW AR 

GYFER PARHAD Y CYFARFOD 
 
 

Rhan 1 
 

1.  Penodi Cadeirydd   
 

2.  Cadeiryddion Annoucements   
 

3.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   
 

4.  Amser Holi'r Cyhoedd   
 

5.  Cyflwyno Freeports  (Tudalennau 3 - 104) 
 

6.  Eitemau brys   
Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairperson pursuant to Statutory Instrument 2001 No. 2290 (as 
amended). 
 

7.  Mynediad i gyfarfodydd  (Tudalennau 105 - 110) 
 

8.  Atodiad cyflwyno Freeports 2 (wedi'i eithrio o dan baragraff 14)  
(Tudalennau 111 - 126) 



 
 

K.Jones 
Prif Weithredwr 

Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot  
 Dydd Mawrth, 15 Tachwedd 2022 
 

 
 
Aelodau’r Y Cabinet:  
 
 
Y Cynghorwyr   S.K.Hunt, S.A.Knoyle, N.Jenkins, D.M.Peters, 
J.Hurley, S.Harris, J.Hale, A.Llewelyn, W.F.Griffiths a/ac S.Jones 
 
 



 

   

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Cabinet 
21st November 2022 

Appendix B - Not for publication pursuant to Regulation 5(2) & (5) of Statutory 
Instrument 2001 No. 2290 and Paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972.  Pursuant also to Paragraph 21 of the Schedule, 
and in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 

exemption is considered to outweigh the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 

 

Report of the Chief Executive – Mrs Karen Jones 

 

Matter for Decision 
 

Wards Affected: Port Talbot, Margam and Taibach 

Freeport Bid Submission 

Purpose of the Report  

1. To seek approval for Neath Port Talbot Council to support a bid to the Welsh 
and UK governments for a Freeport covering the port of Port Talbot and the 
port of Milford Haven and surrounding areas. 

2. To seek delegated authority to the Chief Executive to agree the final draft of the 
submission in consultation with the Leader of Council.  

Executive Summary  

The UK and Welsh Governments have launched a Freeport initiative aimed at 
boosting economic growth by creating special economic zones around ports which 
would provide an array business incentives. This policy is designed to take advantage 
of the UK’s new economic freedoms following Brexit, contribute to the ‘levelling up’ 
agenda and support the country’s economic recovery from the Covid downturn. The 
recently launched Freeport Prospectus set out the bidding criteria and set the 25th of 
November 2022 as the deadline for submissions. 

Following an earlier report to Cabinet, it is proposed that the Council supports a 
consortium bid involving Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council, Pembrokeshire 

Tudalen3

Eitem yr Agenda5



 

   

County Council, Associated British Ports and Milford Haven Port Authority for a 
Freeport covering the Port of Port Talbot and the Port of Milford Haven and 
surrounding areas. 

The key areas of economic activity within the Freeport comprise of three tax sites and 
one customs site at each port where tax, planning and business incentives apply. 
These sites will be the main focus for economic growth; however Freeport status will 
stimulate further growth within the surrounding area inside and outside of the 
Freeport. 

This paper is seeking Cabinet approval for the proposed submission. At the time of 
writing the submission is still being finalised therefore the presentation by Associated 
British Ports and the Bid team will also be made at the meeting of the Cabinet 
Scrutiny Committee on the 21st November 2022 to inform members deliberations.  

The basis of the submission is that a Freeport will provide the opportunity for 
significant economic growth which will build on the already strong port and logistics 
sector and specifically to help lever future opportunities in respect of the developing 
offshore wind sector, supplementing the growth in the wider renewables sector across 
the region. The submission supports the Council’s own wellbeing goals set out in the 
Corporate Plan and also contributes to green economic growth in Wales and across 
the UK. 

Background  

Freeport Programme 

The Freeport Programme in Wales represents a new opportunity to help Wales 
continue to develop a globally competitive, entrepreneurial, inclusive and sustainable 
economy, whilst building the strength and resilience to overcome economic shocks 
experienced during the COVID-19 pandemic. It represents a key commitment within 
the UK Government’s Levelling Up White Paper and will make a positive contribution 
to the Welsh Government’s commitments to the economy, fair work and the seven 
well-being goals set out in the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
which deliver long term benefits to improve the economic, social, environmental and 
cultural wellbeing of Wales. 

The Freeport Programme will look to incentivise private businesses to invest in new 
opportunities in Wales, particularly in relation to climate resilience and making 
maximum progress towards decarbonisation. The Freeport Programme in Wales will 
build on existing local strengths and will make the nearby Welsh cities, towns and 
villages even better places to live and work. 

UK Government have indicated that the Freeports initiative will be the cornerstone of 
the Government’s plan to level up opportunity across the country. The overriding 
objective of Freeports is to boost trade, jobs and investment through streamlining 
regulations, speeding up planning processes and accelerating development and 

Tudalen4



 

   

housing delivery in and around Freeports. This policy is also a response to the UK’s 
departure from the EU and more latterly part of the national economic recovery plan 
following the Covid 19 economic shock. 

Measures to make Freeports attractive to domestic and international investors will 
include: 
 

 Tariff flexibility 

 Simpler customs processes 

 Tax measures to incentivise investment 

 Planning reforms 

 Additional funding for infrastructure improvements 
 

Freeports are secure customs zones located at ports where business can be carried 
out inside a country’s land border but where different customs rules apply. They can 
reduce administrative burdens and tariff controls, provide relief from duties and import 
taxes and ease tax and planning regulations. Typically, goods brought into a Freeport 
do not attract a requirement to pay duties until they leave the Freeport and enter the 
domestic market. No duty at all is payable if they are re-exported.  

Welsh Government published their prospectus for applications in September 2022 (a 
copy of which is enclosed at Appendix A, which sets out a Freeport model which 
would include multiple customs zones located within or away from a port to maximise 
flexibility in addition, Special Economic Zones designated over or around the customs 
zones would be created to maximise business investment in the Freeport. 

Within a Freeport there can be up to three Tax Sites and but an unlimited number of 
customs sites.  

The tax sites will be areas where the following benefits will apply: 

 Land Transaction Tax Relief 

 Enhanced Structures and Buildings Allowances 

 Enhanced Capital Allowances 

 Employer National Insurance Contributions Relief 

 Business Rates Relief 

 Local retention of business rates 

Tudalen5



 

   

 Permitted development rights 
 

The Customs Sites offer the following benefits to businesses located within them: duty 
deferral, duty inversion on finished goods exiting the Freeport attract a lower tariff than 
their component parts, duty exemptions on goods imported into the Freeport, 
suspension of import VAT on good entering the Freeport and the authorisation to use 
simplified import procedures. 

A Freeport Programme in Wales will help to promote regeneration across local 
economies and communities by driving inclusive and sustainable growth locally, 
regionally and nationally. A Freeport will support the Welsh Government’s Mission to 
build a prosperous, green and equal economy based on the principles of fair work, 
sustainability, and the industries and services of the future. The Freeport will further 
enhance Wales’ ability to attract investment and new businesses, bringing growth and 
prosperity to some of our most deprived communities and supporting delivery of key 
economic growth commitments set out in the UK Government’s Plan for Wales. 

The Freeport programme also generates commitment to supporting Wales becoming 
a more sustainable nation through improving the social, economic and cultural well-
being of Wales, specifically applying the sustainable development principle designed 
to maximise contribution to achieve each of the Well-being goals as set out by the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

The Freeport Programme will provide access to a mixture of financial incentives, 
embedded by good governance that supports a strong partnership between local, 
private and public sector stakeholders; with the support of both the Welsh and UK 
governments in attracting investment; and supporting a strong local and regional skills 
base. 

Work to date 

At its meeting of the 29th June 2022, Cabinet authorised officers to engage in further 
exploration, research and discussions to explore the potential of the Council 
submitting a Freeport bid, either in isolation or in partnership with other organisations. 

Since the launch of the prospectus in September 2021, officers across Neath Port 
Talbot Council have been working in partnership with Pembrokeshire County Council, 
Associated British Ports and Milford Haven Port Authority to develop a Freeport 
proposal that would focus on the ports of Port Talbot and Milford Haven.  

A memorandum of understanding was entered into between partners to govern the 
development of a bid.  Members are asked to consider and support the submission of 
the Freeport bid included with these papers to Welsh Ministers by the 24th November 
2022. 

 

Tudalen6

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/economic-resilience-reconstruction-mission_0.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-governments-plan-for-wales-2021
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/


 

   

The proposal 

The Council and Pembrokeshire County Council (“Pembrokeshire”) have worked 
alongside Milford Haven Port Authority (“MHPA) and Associated British Ports (“ABP”), 
to develop a single Freeport bid that builds on collaboration through, for example, the 
Swansea Bay City Deal and the South-West Wales Corporate Joint Committee, and 
best harnesses the clear synergies and collaboration between the two ports, most 
notably in working together to deliver the significant opportunity of floating offshore 
wind in the Celtic Sea and the wider renewables agenda.  

The bid represents a strategy to catalyse investment and development around the two 
ports, both of which are critical yet underutilised national assets. This development 
includes capital-intensive investments that are best placed to take advantage of the 
specific package of tax measures afforded by a Freeport, such as: 

 the floating offshore wind (FLOW) manufacturing and lifecycle cluster that is 
central to ensuring UK content for the Government’s decarbonisation and 
energy security strategies, and which can only happen here, 

 other zero-carbon industries (e.g. hydrogen),  

 advanced manufacturing, and  

 new innovative technologies (e.g. sustainable aviation fuel).  
 
An interim chair of the Bid consortium has been identified; this interim chair would be 
Mr Roger Maggs, the current Chair of the Port Talbot Enterprise Zone. It is intended 
Mr Maggs will assume this role as Chair on a non-remunerated basis until a decision 
has been made by ministers as to the successful bid(s).  

Freeport outer boundary 

Applicants must define an Outer Boundary that reflects “a coherent economic 
geography”. It should be no larger than a 45km circle, with no Freeport sites more 
than 45km apart, however, bids proposing sites outside the Outer Boundary will be 
considered, where this can be supported by a clear economic rationale, including a 
significant relationship between the activity in the proposed customs or tax sites 
outside the Outer Boundary, and the area within the Outer Boundary.  

To reflect the unique multi-port bid, Celtic Freeport is proposing a bespoke outer 
boundary with two distinct zones centred on the wider journey to work areas at Milford 
Haven and Port Talbot. This approach will allows us to maximise the long term gains 
from retained Non-Domestic Rates across key communities, labour markets and 
immediate supply chains. 

For comparative purposes, a ‘strictly compliant’ 45km circle will also be presented, 
which will encompassing the 2 tax sites and the customs site at Milford Haven. This 
circle needs to be in Pembrokeshire so that only 1 tax site is located outside the 
boundary. Notwithstanding this both councils would commit to sharing in the benefits 
of the Freeport, including by pooling the retained business rates revenues.  

Tudalen7



 

   

Freeport tax sites 

Tax sites are the areas where the Freeport tax measures are available. They are also 
the areas within which business rates growth is retained by the local authority for 25 
years. Applicants can propose up to 3 tax sites with a total area not exceeding 600ha. 

Following a due diligence process supported by independent expert advice, a portfolio 
of tax sites has been selected which aims to: 

 deliver net UK and Welsh GDP that cannot be generated elsewhere,  

 assist in a successful net zero transition,  

 improve energy security, and  

 bring new opportunities to deprived communities. 

The tax sites are as follows: 

1) 236 hectares of a portfolio of sites around Milford Haven which is 
deemed contiguous due to the connections between them and the fact 
that land between otherwise separate sites is undevelopable 

2) 22 hectares for hydrogen development on the North of the Haven.  
3) 342 hectares of land in Port Talbot comprising land at Baglan Bay 

Energy Park, Port Talbour Harbourside and ABP Land  

The bid team has been working closely with landowners as well as 
developers/investors/customers, including agreeing a detailed vision for each site with 
landowners and refining boundaries so that only the best land, focused on the best 
opportunities is included.  

As the Freeport becomes operational, Tax Site Delivery Agreements will involve all 
parties – public and private – whose actions are necessary to ensure timely delivery 
and benefit maximisation on tax sites. They will ensure all reasonable efforts are 
taken to realise the vision for additionality and green growth, supporting fair work 
practices and making contributions to the Freeport Company.  

Freeport customs sites 

Customs sites are the areas within which the Freeport customs measures are 
available. There is no limit to the number or size of customs sites that can be 
proposed.  

Two customs sites are proposed, one at each port. 

The bid team is working with MHPA and ABP to understand that the security 
infrastructure and authorisations at each customs site. 

 

 

Tudalen8



 

   

Mitigating displacement 

To comply with the bidding rules, but also to support engagement with regional 
partners, the bid team has been focussed on ensuring the proposition focuses on 
investment that is additional to the area and does not simply displace economic 
activity from elsewhere in South-West Wales.  

The following features of the proposal will enable this to be achieved: 

 Selection of tax sites that target investment that is new to the UK and located 
where it can best support growing well-paid employment for people in the 
region. 

 Obligations on landowners and developers (via Tax Site Delivery Agreements) 
to take best endeavours to deliver development on their land that is additional 
and consistent with the programme’s policy objectives, including avoiding 
displacement.   

 An outer boundary that recognises the wider journey to work areas around 
Freeport locations (which inevitably transcend local authority boundaries).  

 Promotion of major schemes, such as in the renewables sector, which will 
require skilled labour, thereby protecting existing jobs for residents in my area 
and also creating new high quality employment opportunities.  

 Clear benefits for the wider supply chain, with positive impacts for businesses – 
small and large – across the region.  

 The involvement of ABP, whose other facilities across Wales, including at 
Swansea, can deliver complementary activity to support new business at Port 
Talbot.   

 A focus on skills development across the region, for example through 
programmes supported by the local retention of business rates growth on tax 
sites.  

 Involvement of key regional stakeholders such as the South-West Wales 
Industrial Cluster and the Regional Learning & Skills Partnership for South-
West Wales, as well as our regional academic institutions such as the 
Universities of Swansea and South Wales.  

 Commitment to the fair work principles and the Well-being Future Generations 
Act 2015.  

Financial Implications 

In relation to the direct financial impact on the Council, if successful, any future 
revenue costs incurred in progressing with the establishment of a Freeport should be 
funded by c£1m of Government funding which will be made available for development 
costs and also through a suitable business model to support the day to day operation 
of the Freeport.  

There are also wider economic benefits which are detailed below: 

Tudalen9



 

   

The development of a Freeport enables access to additional funding sources including 
grants and the retention of business rates relating to new business that locate within 
the Freeport Tax Sites.  There is a compelling economic case for the Freeport 
equivalent to a possible tax benefit of up to £0.5 billion. Welsh Government will be 
determining how business rates retention will operate in Wales.  

This funding can then be utilised to support the wider development of the Freeport 
area.  

Successful Freeport designation will open up further funding. This includes £21 million 
(or potentially more, as set out in an ‘extended’ case) of dedicated Freeport capital 
seed funding from Government which will be used to enhance the pace of delivery 
across the Freeport, and to unlock further public and private sector investment. This 
will be mainly deployed across key sites for priorities that are primarily focused on 
transport access, land remediation and enablement, and other key infrastructure 
projects. It is also envisaged that some of the seed capital funding is used for skills, 
innovation, and low carbon projects, which address Freeport related opportunities and 
challenges. The Council continues to assess the potential funding streams to 
understand the proposed level of investment available to support the process.  

Integrated Impact Assessment 

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh Language 
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. An integrated impact assessment is 
enclosed at Appendix C, which members are asked to consider as part of their 
deliberations.  

In the event that the bid is successful, a fuller integrated impact assessment will be 
developed as part of the final business case development. The fundamental intent of 
the bid is to boost economic growth which is expected to impact positively on the 
socio- economic profile of the area. The bid addresses the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 policy objectives and fair work - these being a 
requirement to be met within the scoring criteria contained within the Prospectus. 

Legal Impacts 

The submission of the bid is in accordance with the general power of competence on 
local authorities contained in the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

The Prospectus requires that a local authority acts as the lead body for the bid. It is 
proposed that Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council is the lead body for the bid 
and accordingly the Accountable Body.  

As the Accountable Body we would be agreeing to be accountable to both 
governments for the expenditure and management of centrally funded public money: 

Tudalen10



 

   

(1) Receive funding on behalf of the Freeport from the Welsh and UK 
Governments. 

(2) Ensure that such funding is used appropriately in accordance with the law, 
good financial management and any applicable grant conditions. 

(3) Establish and maintain financial systems to account for all public funding 
received and disbursed.  

(4) Ensure that all required information on expenditure, activities and outcomes are 
properly recorded and reported. 

(5) Ensure that good governance is embedded in the decision-making 
arrangements. 

Risk Management 

An alternative option open to Cabinet is not to proceed with the submission of a 
Freeport bid with the consequence that Neath Port Talbot would miss out on the 
significant economic growth opportunities that the Freeport opportunity could create 
and the seed funding of £21 million.  

Risks attached to the role of accountable body are considered to be low and can be 
mitigated through the use of appropriate legal agreements between the relevant 
stakeholders. The cost of services provided as part of the accountable body role will 
be recovered from parties. This type of arrangement exists in a number of settings, 
and can be managed effectively.  

As indicated above, the risk that economic activity will simply be replaced rather than 
be additional will be mitigated by linking the Freeport directly to the off-shore wind 
farm and renewable energy sectors. These are emerging sectors and economic 
activity is therefore expected to comprise of new jobs that will support this emerging 
economy. The use of the land within the proposed tax sites will be regulated through a 
legally binding agreement so providing a further lever to secure additionality.  Finally, 
the two local authorities will determine the distribution of retained business rates and 
this is a further lever to support additionality. 

The risk that a Freeport would result in poor quality of employment is mitigated by the 
undertakings set out in the Bid to support Fair Work. It is also a requirement of the 
Prospectus that trade union representation is secured in the governing body for the 
Freeport supported by a workforce consultative committee. The other levers indicated 
above are also available to support the objective of Fair Work. 

Risks related to tax evasion and other similar matters are addressed in the 
submission as required in the Prospectus. 

Tudalen11



 

   

Consultation 

The Freeport bid has been developed by the two local authorities, Associated British 
Ports and Milford Haven Port Authority, working in consortium. Wider consultation has 
also taken place with a wide range of public and private sector organisations including 
business networks within the Freeport proposed area. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended, that having due regard to the integrated impact screening 
assessment that: 

 Members approve the submission of a bid for a Freeport covering the port of 
Port Talbot and the port of Milford Haven and surrounding areas, in the form 
annexed at Appendix B, subject to any variations that may be necessary prior 
to submission. 

 Members grant delegated authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with 
the Leader of Council to agree amendments to the Bid prior to its final 
submission to the Welsh Government 

 Members approve Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council’s nomination as 
the Accountable Body for the proposed Freeport. 

 Members authorise the Leader of Council to submit a letter to the Welsh 
Government reflecting Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council’s support for 
a Freeport covering the port of Port Talbot and the port of Milford Haven. 

 Members authorise the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader to take 
action as may be necessary to promote the merits of the Bid post submission 
up to the point of Ministers decisions on the success/otherwise of the bid.  

Reason for Decision  

Achieving Freeport status could act as a catalyst for significant economic growth 
within the locality and the wider region linked to the emerging off-shore wind sector 
and wider renewables agenda. The proposal will also support work to decarbonise 
industry, housing and transport at local regional and national levels helping to meet 
the net zero carbon targets. Green economic growth will help to address structural 
issues of poverty and deprivation in the local and regional economy stimulating the 
local supply chain and increasing the skills and qualifications of the resident 
population.  

Implementation of Decision 

The decision is proposed for immediate implementation with the consent of the Chair 
of the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee. 

Tudalen12



 

   

Appendices 

Appendix A – Freeport Prospectus 

Appendix B – Draft Freeport Bid Document (Exempt Under Paragraph 14) 

Appendix C – Integrated Impact Assessment 

List of Background Papers 

None 

Officer Contact 

Mrs Karen Jones 

Chief Executive 

 

Mrs Nicola Pearce 

Director of Environment and Regeneration 

 

Mr Huw Jones 

Chief Finance Officer 

 

Mr Simon Brennan 

Head of Property and Regeneration 

 

Tudalen13



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Tudalen15



Tudalen16



Tudalen17



Tudalen18



Tudalen19



Tudalen20



Tudalen21



Tudalen22



Tudalen23



Tudalen24



Tudalen25



Tudalen26



Tudalen27



Tudalen28



Tudalen29



Tudalen30



Tudalen31



Tudalen32



Tudalen33



Tudalen34



Tudalen35



Tudalen36



Tudalen37



Tudalen38



Tudalen39



Tudalen40



Tudalen41



Tudalen42



Tudalen43



Tudalen44



Tudalen45



Tudalen46



Tudalen47



Tudalen48



Tudalen49



Tudalen50



Tudalen51



Tudalen52



Tudalen53



Tudalen54



Tudalen55



Tudalen56



Tudalen57



Tudalen58



Tudalen59



Tudalen60



Tudalen61



Tudalen62



Tudalen63



Tudalen64



Tudalen65



Tudalen66



Tudalen67



Tudalen68



Tudalen69



Tudalen70



Tudalen71



Tudalen72



Tudalen73



Tudalen74



Tudalen75



Tudalen76



Tudalen77



Tudalen78



Tudalen79



Tudalen80



Tudalen81



Tudalen82



Tudalen83



Tudalen84



1 
 

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)  

This Integrated Impact Assessment considers the duties and requirements of the following legislation in order to inform and ensure effective 
decision making and compliance: 

 Equality Act 2010    

 Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 

 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 Environment (Wales) Act 2016  
 
1. Details of the initiative 
 

 Title of the Initiative:   

1a Service Area:   Freeport Bid Submission 

1b Directorate: Environment and Regeneration 

1c Summary of the initiative:  

To seek approval for Neath Port Talbot Council to support a bid to the Welsh and UK governments for a Freeport covering the port of 
Port Talbot and the port of Milford Haven and to seek delegated authority to the Chief Executive to agree the final draft of the 
submission in consultation with Leader of Council 

1d Who will be directly affected by this initiative?  

The UK and Welsh Governments have launched a Freeport initiative aimed at boosting economic growth by creating special economic 
zones around ports which would provide an array business incentives. This policy is designed to take advantage of the UK’s new 
economic freedoms following Brexit, contribute to the ‘levelling up’ agenda and support the country’s economic recovery from the 
Covid downturn. The recently launched Freeport Prospectus set out the bidding criteria and set the 25th of November 2022 as the 
deadline for submissions. 
 
The initiative will directly affect the landowners proposed to be included in the tax zones and customs zones and they have been fully 
involved in drawing up the bid. 
 

1e When and how were people consulted? 
 

T
udalen85



2 
 

At its meeting of the 29th June 2022, Cabinet authorised officers to engage in further exploration, research and discussions to explore 
the potential of the Council submitting a Freeport bid, either in isolation or in partnership with other organisations. 
The Freeport bid has been developed by the two local authorities, Associated British Ports and Milford Haven Port Authority, working 
in consortium. Wider consultation has also taken place with a wide range of public and private sector organisations including business 
networks within the Freeport proposed area. Letters of support from such organisations will be included in the submission to the 
Welsh Ministers. 
 
 

1f What were the outcomes of the consultation? 

Letters of support from such organisations will be included in the submission to the Welsh Ministers and these include letters of 
support from: 

 All landowners proposed to be included within the tax zones and customs zones 
 Regional MSs  
 Regional MPs  
 Shadow ministerial teams  
 Tom Pick  
 Valero  
 RWE  
 EDF  
 Blue Gem Wind  
 Bombora  
 Puma  
 Tata  
 Dragon LNG / Shell  
 CJC - Swansea Council  
 CJC - Carmarthenshire County Council  
 Milford Haven Town Council  
 Pembroke Dock Town Council  
 Pembrokeshire Coast National Park Authority  
 Haven Waterway Enterprise Zone  
 The Regional Learning and Skills Partnership for South West Wales  
 Local colleges- NPTC Group 

T
udalen86



3 
 

 Swansea University, University of South Wales, University of Wales Trinity St Davids, Cardiff University 
 SWIC  
 RenewableUK Cymru  
 Marine Energy Wales  
 ORE Catapult  
 H2 Wales  
 UK Major Ports Group  
 British Ports Association  
 FSB 
 PSB 
 Local Economic Forum 
 Economic Strategy Board  
 FLEXIS 
 TUC  
 Celtic Sea Power 
 Western Gateway 
 Welsh Government 

 
2. Evidence  
 

What evidence was used in assessing the initiative? 

During the bid phase, partners have been pro-active in engaging with developers/investors and customers in our target sectors identifying 
Freeport contingent opportunities, and in agreeing a detailed vision for sites with land owners and refining boundaries, so that only the best 
land, focussed on the best opportunities is included. 

 

Welsh government policy documents setting out an analysis of the capacity of UK ports to support the emerging off-shore wind energy 
sector – those documents identify both Port of Milford Haven and Port Talbot as uniquely placed to be able to support FLOW. 

 

T
udalen87



4 
 

Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation – 2019 data identifying areas of relatively high deprivation in the vicinity of both ports which then stand 
to benefit from the investment proposition. 

 

LDP data – pre-application assessment of the proposed use of sites has been undertaken to establish the deliverability of the proposition 
together with potential impacts on biodiversity and environment with associated options to mitigate. 

 

 

 
3. Equalities  
 
a) How does the initiative impact on people who share a protected characteristic?  
 

Protected Characteristic + - 
+/
- 

Why will it have this impact? 

Age   X The proposal will directly benefit those of working age who would have the opportunity to 
take up employment within the new jobs that the proposition is expected to create.  Fair 
work principles will ensure the new jobs are secure and well paid helping to address socio-
economic disparities within the local population. 

 

Further work will be needed during the next phase of work should the bid be successful to 
develop pathways to the new work for local people. It is expected that those pathways 
would cater for all people with protected characteristics to have equal opportunity to take 
up jobs in the new employment. 

Indirectly, if the proposition moves forward, over time there is expected to be £0.5 billion of 
direct economic benefit for the two port areas with further economic benefit at significant 
scale expected to stem from FLOW. The impact on the wider economy and consequently all 
of those with protected characteristic and who are currently classified in the lower socio 
economic groups would benefit. More detail will develop as the proposition moves forward 
into future stages. 

Disability   X 

Gender reassignment   X 

Marriage & civil partnership   X 

Pregnancy and maternity   X 

Race   X 

Religion or belief   X 

Sex   X 

Sexual orientation   X 

T
udalen88



5 
 

 

There will be a requirement to establish a Freeport entity to operate the Freeport in the 
event the bid is successful. For the purpose of any future governance structure that would 
be embarked on, diversity would includes, but is not limited to, skills and experience, 
gender, and ethnicity, to reflect the diverse nature of the environment in which the 
Freeport would operate and will be made in the context of the skills, knowledge, 
experience, background and independence that is required for any governance structure to 
be able to ensure effective delivery. A consultative committee which would enable the 
participation of trade union representatives would provide a mechanism to further ensure 
there is equal opportunity for people who share a protected characteristic. 

 
 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts? 

A final business case will be required in accordance with HM Treasury Green Book rules should the bid be successful. This will require 
development of a five case business case to support the proposition. This will necessarily include a full risk analysis with details of risk 
mitigations that would be established to optimise benefits and minimise disbenefits. 

 
 
b) How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?  
  

Public Sector Equality Duty 
(PSED) 

 

+ - +/- Why will it have this impact?  

T
udalen89



6 
 

To eliminate discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation  

  X 
It is proposed that the bid will embrace the WG commitment to Fair Work and an economic 
contract would be developed between the Freeport and the WG.  Trade unions will be 
integrated into governance arrangements. 

To advance equality of 
opportunity between different 
groups 

X   

A Freeport Programme in Wales will help to promote regeneration across local economies 
and communities by driving inclusive and sustainable growth locally, regionally and 
nationally. 
 
Bringing together local organisations that are trying to achieve similar regeneration goals, 
pooling resources and creating shared objectives can be the best way to deliver outcomes 
that are truly transformative and achieve ‘levelling up’ across communities. 
 
The proposal will also support work to decarbonise industry, housing and transport at local 
regional and national levels helping to meet the net zero carbon targets. Green economic 
growth will help to address structural issues of poverty and deprivation in the local and 
regional economy stimulating the local supply chain and increasing the skills and 
qualifications of the resident population. 
 
As part of the final business case development work will be undertaken to establish clear 
pathways to work for local people and local businesses. This will be designed in a way that 
would enable people from different groups to have equal opportunity to access the new 
employment this initiative is expected to create. 

To foster good relations 
between different groups 

X   

A Freeport Programme in Wales will help to promote regeneration across local economies 
and communities by driving inclusive and sustainable growth locally, regionally and 
nationally. 
 

Green economic growth will help to address structural issues of poverty and deprivation in 
the local and regional economy stimulating the local supply chain and increasing the skills 
and qualifications of the resident population. 

 

T
udalen90



7 
 

By addressing the root causes of poverty and deprivation communities will be strengthened 
and become more cohesive. This will assist in discharging the duty to foster relations 
between different groups 

 
 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts? 

As indicated above, there will be a requirement to prepare a final business case based on HM Treasury Green Book guidance. This will 
enable a fuller assessment of equality impacts to be undertaken together with any mitigating actions that can be designed to maximise 
beneficial impacts and reduce potential disbenefits. 

 
4. Community Cohesion/Social Exclusion/Poverty  
 

 + - 
+/
- 

Why will it have this impact? 

Community Cohesion 

  X The Freeport Programme will look to incentivise private businesses to invest in new 
opportunities in Wales, particularly in relation to climate resilience and making maximum 
progress towards decarbonisation. The Freeport Programme in Wales will build on existing 
local strengths and will make the nearby Welsh cities, towns and villages even better places 
to live and work. 
 
A Freeport Programme in Wales will help to promote regeneration across local economies 
and communities by driving inclusive and sustainable growth locally, regionally and 
nationally. 
 

T
udalen91



8 
 

Bringing together local organisations that are trying to achieve similar regeneration goals, 
pooling resources and creating shared objectives can be the best way to deliver outcomes 
that are truly transformative and achieve ‘levelling up’ across communities. 
 
Areas in proximity to the areas proposed to be include in the Freeport are amongst the 
most deprived (10%) in Wales. Economic growth has the potential to transform these 
communities and to address the root causes of the poverty and disadvantage that people 
currently experience. The commitment to Fair Work and sustainability should ensure that 
new employment will be well paid and secure. 
 

Social Exclusion X   As above – the detail will be further developed during the final business case development. 
The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation identifies lower super output areas within the 
vicinity of the Port Talbot sites proposed to be include in the Freeport as amongst the most 
disadvantaged in Wales (top 10%) and it is clear from the data that this affects people with 
a range of protected characteristics also. 

Poverty X    
The whole essence of the proposition is to boost local and regional economic growth in an 
emerging green industry. Integral to the proposition is an intent to maximise benefit to local 
people and local supply chains with an underpinning commitment to Fair Work and 
sustainability.  More detail of how these benefits could assist in addressing the root causes 
of poverty in the vicinity of the Freeport and across the county borough as a whole will be 
developing through the final business case stage. 
 

 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts? 

T
udalen92



9 
 

As indicated above, a final business case will be developed if the Bid is successful. This will need to address HM Treasury Green Book 
requirements within which the analysis will identify the potential benefits/disbenefits of the proposition and suitable mitigation actions 
that would optimise benefits and minimise disbenefits. 

 
5. Welsh 
 

 + - +/- Why will it have this effect?   

What effect  does the initiative 
have on:  

- people’s opportunities to 
use the Welsh language 

  X 

There is no impact on the opportunity to use the Welsh Language. Any engagement of the 
local authority will be in accordance with our Welsh Language Standards. 

- treating the Welsh and 
English languages equally   X 

There is no impact on treating the Welsh language less favourably that English. Compliance 
will be had at all times to Welsh Language Standards, so far as they relate to the Council. 
Branding will be bilingual 

 
 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?  

T
udalen93



10 
 

Branding and communications will be in accordance with Welsh Language Standards 

The use of the term Celtic Freeport and the associated strapline will promote a positive image of Wales and the Welsh language on a 
domestic and international platform. 

 
6. Biodiversity  
 
How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Biodiversity Duty?  
 

Biodiversity Duty  + - +/- Why will it have this impact?  

To maintain and enhance 
biodiversity  

X   

The existing energy clusters at Milford Haven and Port Talbot have a negative impact on the 
environment, including from noise and CO2 emissions. Pivoting activity on these sites 
towards green energy will reduce this impact, as well as supporting the UK’s transition 
towards a lower carbon future. 

 

The development of the Freeport itself is being assessed to ensure any impacts on 
biodiversity can be fully mitigated and biodiversity enhanced. This will be subject to more 
detailed consideration at the final business case stage if the Bid is successful. 

To promote the resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. supporting 
protection of the wider 
environment, such as air 
quality, flood alleviation, etc.  

X   

Leading the transition to net zero is a priority for the region and a key theme across public 
and private stakeholders in the bid. 

Fundamentally, with a transition to renewables comparable and bigger than the existing 
fossil fuel based economy, the region is at risk of declining living standards and growing 
deprivation. 

T
udalen94



11 
 

Addressing decarbonisation is a key building block in the UK meeting its 2050 net zero 
target. 

The potential for our region centres on the opportunities presented by the energy 
transition. A Freeport has the potential to be a world class renewable energy structure.  

FLOW is the biggest opportunity that links the strategic ports of Milford Haven and Port 
Talbot. The region is uniquely placed to take advantage of the opportunities around green 
hydrogen which have strong synergies with the emerging FLOW opportunity. The 
stakeholders are already delivering hydrogen based projects in the region which a Freeport 
can accelerate. 

An additional opportunity is the development of CCS, which is a critical component in 
decarbonising the existing energy sector. 

 
 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?  

It is recognised that development on land that is currently not built out may potentially generate impacts, including increased freight 
volumes and activity on the seabed. A strong local planning system is central to mitigating these impacts. As part of the bid, planning 
officers have been engaged to ensure all elements of the proposal make the necessary contributions to biodiversity gain and good care of 
the built and natural environment and this work will continue in the event a bid is successful. Through preplanning activities and 
engagement with potential developers, significant steps have already been taken to identify and mitigate any environmental impacts as 
early as possible. 

 
 
7. Well-being of Future Generations  

How have the five ways of working been applied in the development of the initiative?  

Ways of Working Details 

T
udalen95



12 
 

i. Long term – looking at least 
10 years (and up to 25 years) 
ahead 

A Freeport Programme in Wales will help to promote regeneration across local economies and 
communities by driving inclusive and sustainable growth locally, regionally and nationally. A Freeport 
will support the Welsh Government’s Mission to build a prosperous, green and equal economy based 
on the principles of fair work, sustainability, and the industries and services of the future. The Freeport 
will further enhance Wales’ ability to attract investment and new businesses, bringing growth and 
prosperity to some of our most deprived communities and supporting delivery of key economic growth 
commitments set out in the UK Government’s Plan for Wales. 
 
The Freeport programme also generates commitment to supporting Wales becoming a more 
sustainable nation through improving the social, economic and cultural well-being of Wales, specifically 
applying the sustainable development principle designed to maximise contribution to achieve each of 
the Well-being goals as set out by the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 
The Freeport Programme will provide access to a mixture of financial incentives, embedded by good 
governance that supports a strong partnership between local, private and public sector stakeholders; 
with the support of both the Welsh and UK governments in attracting investment; and supporting a 
strong local and regional skills base. 
 
Achieving Freeport status could act as a catalyst for significant economic growth within the locality and 
the wider region linked to the emerging off-shore wind sector and wider renewables agenda. The 
proposal will also support work to decarbonise industry, housing and transport at local regional and 
national levels helping to meet the net zero carbon targets. Green economic growth will help to 
address structural issues of poverty and deprivation in the local and regional economy stimulating the 
local supply chain and increasing the skills and qualifications of the resident population. This is a once in 
a generation opportunity to transform the local and regional economy, arresting and reversing the 
negative impacts associated with the long term decline of traditional industries in the areas. 
 

ii. Prevention – preventing 
problems occurring or getting 
worse 

The Freeport Programme in Wales represents a new opportunity to help Wales continue to develop a 
globally competitive, entrepreneurial, inclusive and sustainable economy, whilst building the strength 
and resilience to overcome economic shocks experienced during the COVID-19 pandemic. It represents 
a key commitment within the UK Government’s Levelling Up White Paper and will make a positive 
contribution to the Welsh Government’s commitments to the economy, fair work and the seven well-

T
udalen96

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/economic-resilience-reconstruction-mission_0.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-governments-plan-for-wales-2021
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/


13 
 

being goals set out in the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 which deliver long term 
benefits to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales. 
 
The region’s economic challenges are linked with long term process of industrial change that is still 
ongoing. The industrial base in Pembrokeshire and Neath Port Talbot is reliant on fossil fuels which 
possess significant risks associated with the transition to net zero. As things stand there is a risk the 
industrial base will not be able to sustain green jobs for future generations and provide high value jobs 
to large parts of the population. This could have the potential to risk declining living standards and 
growing deprivation. 
 
The potential of the Freeport is that it is a unique opportunity to fast track low carbon technology and 
decarbonisation focussed projects, contributing to the net zero agenda. Freeport status will trigger 
larger scale private investment from the renewables industry in the region and a Freeport will allow for 
these opportunities to be exploited. The scale of private investment to meet this opportunity would 
come with a Freeport. 
 
The UK is seeking to overturn the advantages overseas manufacturers have amassed through 
Government support, sunk costs, and accumulated economies of scale and extensive experience. The 
combines Freeport offer of land, tax incentives, coordination of planning, enabling infrastructure and 
skills/innovation investment is compelling to overseas investors. 

iii. Collaboration – working with 
other services internal or 
external  

At its meeting of the 29th June 2022, Cabinet authorised officers to engage in further exploration, 
research and discussions to explore the potential of the Council submitting a Freeport bid, either in 
isolation or in partnership with other organisations. 
 
The Freeport bid has been developed by the two local authorities, Associated British Ports and Milford 
Haven Port Authority, working in consortium. Wider consultation has also taken place with a wide 
range of public and private sector organisations including business networks within the Freeport 
proposed area. Letters of support from such organisations will be included in the submission to the 
Welsh Ministers. 
 

T
udalen97



14 
 

iv. Involvement – involving 
people,  ensuring they reflect 
the diversity of the population  

The Freeport bid has been developed by the two local authorities, Associated British Ports and Milford 
Haven Port Authority, working in consortium. Wider consultation has also taken place with a wide 
range of public and private sector organisations including business networks within the Freeport 
proposed area. Letters of support from such organisations will be included in the submission to the 
Welsh Ministers as indicated above. 
 
If the Bid is successful a broader programme of engagement will be developed with a view to 
maximising the benefits of the investment for local people and local businesses across the South West 
Wales region 
 

v. Integration – making 
connections to maximise 
contribution to: 

Celtic Freeport can secure a step change in renewable energy investment and support the zero-carbon 
industrial revolution in a way that works for our communities by creating new, high-quality jobs in the 
sectors of tomorrow and safeguarding the living standards of future generations.  

Our public and private bidding partners have taken a long-term, community-led lens, considering how 
our proposition can improve the ‘social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales’. 
Below we outline how the Freeport will support the seven well-being goals of the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act.  

A prosperous Wales 

Celtic Freeport will deliver significant investment for Wales in innovative, low-carbon technologies in 
areas like FLOW, hydrogen, CCUS and biofuels. An example is Lanzatech’s pioneering process of 
converting CO2 from Tata Steel into biofuels with applications in the aviation industry, with the support 
of Freeport tax measures.  

Pembrokeshire County and Neath Port Talbot Councils have agreed to pool recycled business rates and 
the funding stream this can generate is transformational (c£0.5bn over 25 years based on English 
precedent). This funding can support, for example, vocational and academic offers at schools, colleges 
and universities in the region, helping to prepare future generations for the jobs the 21st century 
economy will require, as well as upskill adults already in employment, thereby maximising the labour 
market participation opportunity for the region and for Wales.  

T
udalen98



15 
 

A resilient Wales 

The technology investment that Celtic Freeport will bring forward in areas like FLOW and green 
hydrogen will, over the medium to long term, support the accelerated reduction of carbon emissions in 
Wales’s largest industrial cluster. Moreover, by managing the transition away from a fossil-fuel based 
economy, it will reduce Wales’s exposure to demand-supply shocks of geopolitically vulnerable 
industries such as gas.  

Celtic Freeport will help improve Welsh air quality, a cornerstone of the natural environment. Many of 
our proposed tax site locations are largely existing brownfield locations, minimising the impact of 
development on local biodiversity. Where impacts are identified, we have a track record of supporting 
and delivering mitigation measures.  

A healthier Wales 

Celtic Freeport will contribute to a reduction in air pollution throughout the South Wales industrial 
cluster (as the region transitions away from fossil-fuel based industries). This will have a number of 
health benefits for local residents, including improved lung health and mental well-being. This will have 
knock-on economic benefits by keeping people healthier for longer.   

A more equal Wales 

Celtic Freeport will direct significant private investment to areas adjacent to some of the most deprived 
communities in Wales. It will generate labour market and training opportunities (through private 
investment, landowner/developer commitments and recycled business rates) for local residents in 
these communities. The ensuing economic growth around the Freeport will help to tackle intrenched, 
inter-generational poverty, growing local productivity and wages.  

Tax Site Delivery Agreements will commit landowners and employers to offering fair working conditions 
to employees, and the Freeport Company Board will have a designated diversity champion to ensure 
the Freeport has a positive impact on socio-economic disparities within the local population.  

A Wales of cohesive communities 

Increased investment and a growing local economy are often linked with increased community 
cohesion. Celtic Freeport will bring forward investment on brownfield sites that have long been stalled, 
regenerating iconic locations like the Baglan Energy Park. In order to open up these sites, enabling 

T
udalen99



16 
 

infrastructure like new roads and junctions will improve the connectivity of communities across the 
region.  

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

It is expected that recycled retained business rates will help support targeted vocational pathways in 
local schools and colleges, and these are likely to be bi-lingual. Moreover, by attracting new investment 
(and jobs) to the region, Freeport interventions will help to spread the Welsh language and culture. 
Furthermore, increased economic growth can frees up headroom in local and regional budgets to invest 
into culture and arts. 

A globally responsible Wales 

Delivering FLOW in the Celtic Sea will serve as a globally recognised proof of concept, and the Freeport 
supports our ambitions to be a ‘first mover’. If conditions are right, Wales could be become an exporter 
of FLOW technologies, not to mention green hydrogen, sustainable aviation fuel and other products.   

There will be significant global benefits from the step change in renewable energy investment delivered 
by Celtic Freeport. Decarbonising the South Wales industrial cluster is a critical step for Wales and the 
UK in meeting 2050 net zero targets. The Freeport will accelerate this and make the path to net zero 
more credible.  

Council’s well-being objectives The proposition addresses all four of the Council’s wellbeing objectives: 
 
New, green jobs, supported by accessible and good quality skills and learning pathways will help all 
children and young people have the best start in life; addressing the root causes of poverty by ensuring 
there are more, green and wellbeing jobs for local people will address inequality which in turn will help 
develop thriving and sustainable communities; the focus on decarbonising industry, housing and travel 
at scale will help conserve the environment for future generations. There is scope to capture the 
unique culture and heritage of former industries in the transition process to conserve this important 
part of the area’s past for future generations also; finally the creation of many new, sustainable and 
well paid jobs will deliver the Council’s ambitions to improve jobs and skills 
 

Other public bodies objectives The Council is working in consortium with Pembrokeshire Council. Consensus has been reached on the 
basis of this bid with both authorities agreed that a partnership across the two local authorities 
positions the wider region to take advantage of the Celtic Sea offshore wind opportunity. 

T
udalen100



17 
 

Both Pembroke and NPT councils have promoted the Freeport opportunity within the South West 
Wales CJC. It is anticipated that the four local authorities within the region will wish to give greater 
focus to the opportunity that FLOW will potentially create for the whole region. 
Initial discussions with FE, HE and government partners have been very positive. 

 
 
8. Monitoring Arrangements  
 
Provide information on the monitoring arrangements to: 
Monitor the impact of the initiative on Equalities, Community Cohesion, the Welsh Measure, Biodiversity Duty and the Wellbeing Objectives. 
 
 
 

The award of a Freeport is a significant investment decision for UK and Welsh governments. The delivery of the Freeport policy objectives will 
need to be reported to the governments in return for the investment that accompanies the Freeport status. 

 
9. Assessment Conclusions 
 
Please provide details of the conclusions reached in relation to each element of the assessment:    
 

 Conclusion 

Equalities  The overall impact is expected to be positive. More work is needed in the final business case development to 
ensure equal opportunity to participate in new employment and supply chain opportunities. 

T
udalen101



18 
 

Community Cohesion/ Social 
Exclusion/Poverty   

The economic development that could be created through the Freeport Bid and associated FLOW 
opportunities has the potential to address the root causes of poverty and deprivation caused by long term 
decline in former industries. In the final business case development it will be crucial to ensure that strategies 
are developed to maximise the benefits locally and regionally and to minimise any disbenefits. 

Welsh Branding will be bilingual and actively promote a positive image of Wales. This will be delivered on both a 
domestic and international platform.  The conduct of the business of the Freeport will respect the WG policy 
objectives to create a million Welsh speakers by 2050 

Biodiversity The Bid has the potential to significant accelerate decarbonisation across the region. Negative impacts on 
environment and biodiversity can be mitigated and achieve a net beneficial impact. 

Well-being of Future 
Generations  

The Freeport Bid, linked to FLOW and the wider renewable energy agenda contributes in a positive and 
material way to the overall objectives of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act.  It is possible to address 
each of the wellbeing goals in a specific and positive way and to make clear link between the initiative and the 
sustainable development principle. This is considered to be a once in a generation opportunity to improve the 
economic, cultural, social and environmental wellbeing of the people in NPT. 

 

Overall Conclusion  

Please indicate the conclusion reached:  

 Continue - as planned as no problems and all opportunities have been maximised    

 Make adjustments - as potential problems/missed opportunities/negative impacts have been identified along  

with mitigating actions  

 Justification - for continuing with the initiative even though there is a potential for negative impacts or missed opportunities  

 STOP - redraft the initiative as actual or potential unlawful discrimination has been identified  

 

T
udalen102



19 
 

Please provide details of the overall conclusion reached in relation to the initiative 

 
10. Actions  
 
What actions are required in relation to obtaining further data/information, to reduce or remove negative impacts or improve positive 
impacts?   
 

Action 
Who will be responsible for 
seeing it is done? 

When will it be done by? 
How will we know we have 
achieved our objective? 

Ensure the public sector duties 
are firmly embedded in the 
development of the final 
business case development in 
the event the Bid is successful 

The Council By conclusion of the Final 
Business Case 

Evidence in the Final Business 
case that all of the public sector 
duties are expressly addressed 

Further assessment of the impact 
of proposed development on the 
local environment and 
biodiversity 

The Council Will need to be addressed within 
any planning process 

Planning consent is granted and 
any conditions are effectively 
and full discharged 

 

CONTINUE 
 
Further development of the proposition will take place if the BID is successful through the final business case development. 

T
udalen103



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



  

 
 
 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

Name and date of Meeting 
 

ACCESS TO MEETINGS/EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

Purpose: To consider whether the Public should be 
excluded from the following items of business. 
 

Item (s): 
 

Freeport Bid Submission 

Recommendation(s): That the public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it/they involve(s) 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
set out in the Paragraphs listed below of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) 
Order 2007 subject to the Public Interest Test 
(where appropriate) being applied. 
 

Relevant Paragraph(s): 
 

14 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
To enable Members to consider whether the public should be 
excluded from the meeting in relation to the item(s) listed above. 
 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) 
Order 2007, allows a Principal Council to pass a resolution excluding 
the public from a meeting during an item of business.  

Tudalen105

Eitem yr Agenda7



 
Such a resolution is dependant on whether it is likely, in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings that if members of the public were present during that 
item there would be disclosure to them of exempt information, as 
defined in section 100I of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
2. Exclusion of the Public/Public Interest Test 
 
In order to comply with the above mentioned legislation, Members will 
be requested to exclude the public from the meeting during 
consideration of the item(s) of business identified in the 
recommendation(s) to the report on the grounds that it/they involve(s) 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as set out in the Exclusion 
Paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) (Wales) Order 2007. 
 
Information which falls within paragraphs 12 to 15, 17 and 18 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended is 
exempt information if and so long as in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
The specific Exclusion Paragraphs and the Public Interest Tests to be 
applied are listed in Appendix A. 
 
Where paragraph 16 of the Schedule 12A applies there is no public 
interest test.  Members are able to consider whether they wish to 
waive their legal privilege in the information, however, given that this 
may place the Council in a position of risk, it is not something that 
should be done as a matter of routine. 
 
3. Financial Implications 
 
Not applicable 

Tudalen106



 
4. Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
Not applicable 
 
5. Valleys Communities Impact 
 
Not applicable 
 
6. Workforce Impact 
 
Not applicable. 
 
7. Legal Implications 
 
The legislative provisions are set out in the report. 
 
Members must consider with regard to each item of business the 
following matters. 
 
(a)  Whether in relation to that item of business the information is 

capable of being exempt information, because it falls into one of 
the paragraphs set out in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended and reproduced in Appendix 
A to this report. 

 
 and either 
 
 
(b) If the information does fall within one or more of paragraphs 12 

to 15, 17 and 18 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended, the public interest test in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information; or  

 

Tudalen107



(c) if the information falls within the paragraph 16 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 in considering whether to 
exclude the public members are not required to apply the public 
interest test by must consider whether they wish to waive their 
privilege in relation to that item for any reason. 

 
8. Risk Management 
 
To allow Members to consider risk associated with exempt 
information. 
 
9. Recommendation(s) 
 
As detailed at the start of the report. 
 
 
10. Reason for Proposed Decision(s): 
 
To ensure that all items are considered in the appropriate manner. 
 
 
11. Implementation of Decision(s): 
 
The decision(s) will be implemented immediately. 
 
 
12. List of Background Papers: 
 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
13. Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – List of Exemptions  

Tudalen108



 
Appendix A 

 

NO Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A 

12 Information relating to a particular individual 
 

13 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual 
 

14 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
 

15 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated consultations or negotiations in connection 
with any labour relations matter arising between the 
authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or 
office holders under, the authority 
 

16 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 

 

17 Information which reveals that the authority proposes: 

 To give under any enactment a notice under or by 
virtue of which requirements are imposed on a 
person, or 

 To make an order or direction under any enactment. 

18 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution 
of crime. 

 

Tudalen109



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen111

Eitem yr Agenda8
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Document is Restricted

Tudalen121

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 14 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	5 Cyflwyno Freeports
	Freeport Prospectus
	Freeport IIA Full Assessment

	7 Mynediad i gyfarfodydd
	8 Atodiad cyflwyno Freeports 2 (wedi'i eithrio o dan baragraff 14)
	Celtic Freeport 3.7. Risk 141122


